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From: E-Verify <E-Verify.USCIS@public.govdelivery.com>
Sent: Thursday, January 7, 2021 12:55 PM
To:
Subject: E-Verify is fully operational and ready to serve

Appropriate action is required to create cases and resolve TNCs  

E-Verify Resumes Operations

Creating Cases 

Now that E-Verify is fully operational, E-Verify participating employers must create 
an E-Verify case by January 11, 2021 for each employee hired while E-Verify was 
temporarily unavailable from January 4 to January 5, 2021. You must use the hire 
date from the employee’s Form I-9 when creating the E-Verify case. For these 
employees, if you do not create an E-Verify case by the third business day after the 
employee begins work for pay, select “Technical Problems” from the drop-down list 
as the specific reason. The days beginning January 4, 2021 through January 8, 
2021 will not count toward the three business days employers have to create a case 
in E-Verify. 

Tentative Nonconfirmations 

If your employee received a Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Tentative 
Nonconfirmation (TNC) and notified you of his or her intention to contest while E-
Verify was temporarily unavailable, you must revise the date by which your 
employee must contact DHS to begin resolving the TNC. You have three options to 
revise the date on the previously printed ‘Referral Date Confirmation’ notice: 
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 The best option is to print a new ‘Referral Date Confirmation’ notice which
will have the new date employees must contact DHS to begin resolving their
TNC.  To reprint a copy of your employee’s “Referral Date Confirmation” log-
in to E-Verify, select your employee’s case and select the “Print
Confirmation” button.

 Log-in to E-Verify to obtain the new referral date found by selecting the
employee’s case and write the new date on the previously issued ‘Referral
Date Confirmation’ notice.

 Add five federal business days to the date on your employee’s “Referral
Date Confirmation” notice. Federal business days are Monday through
Friday and do not include federal holidays.  Give the revised notice to your
employee.

For DHS TNC cases that were referred after E-Verify was fully operational on 
January 6, 2021, do not add days to the time your employee has to contact DHS. If 
your employee decided to contest the TNC when E-Verify was unavailable, you 
should now refer the employee’s case and follow the TNC process. 

If your employee received a Social Security Administration (SSA) TNC, you do not 
need to add any additional days.  Due the Covid-19 pandemic, E-Verify has 
temporarily extended the timeframe employees have to contest their SSA 
TNC.  The period of time that E-Verify was temporarily unavailable does not affect 
these employees. 

Federal Contractor 
Deadlines 

During the time E-Verify was temporarily 
unavailable, federal contractors could not 
enroll or use E-Verify as required by the 
E-Verify federal contractor rule (FAR). As
a result, any calendar day during which
E-Verify was unavailable will not count towards any of the federal contractor
deadlines. Please contact your contracting officer, as necessary, for more
information on federal contractor responsibilities.

Employees  

If the unavailability of E-Verify prevented you from contesting your Department of 
Homeland Security (DHS) Tentative Nonconfirmation (TNC), you will be allowed 
additional time to contact DHS to begin the process of resolving your TNC. If your 
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referral date confirmation was received while E-Verify was temporarily unavailable, 
you have three options to obtain your new date: 

 Contact your employer and have them print out a new “Referral Date
Confirmation” notice for you.  Your notice will have the new date for when
you must contact the DHS to begin resolving your TNC.

 Ask your employer to log-in to E-Verify to obtain your new referral date and
write the new date on your previously issued ‘Referral Date Confirmation’
notice.

 Add five federal business days to the date printed on the “Referral Date
Confirmation” that your employer provided you after you contested your DHS
TNC. Federal business days are Monday through Friday and do not include
federal holidays.

Contact DHS by the new date to begin the process of resolving your TNC. 

If you received a Social Security Administration (SSA) TNC, you are still covered by 
the extension resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic in which E-Verify has 
temporarily extended the timeframe you have to contest your SSA TNC.  The 
unavailability of E-Verify does not affect you. 

For more information about contesting your TNC, please refer to E-Verify’s 
employee page 

Please do not reply to this message. 
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Don’t forget to text “EVERIFY UPDATES” to 468311 to get the latest E-Verify 
news.

Apply to use the E‐Verify logo. Complete and submit the License Application for the Use of the E‐Verify 
Trademark. 

SUBSCRIBER SERVICES: 

Update your subscriptions, modify your password or email address, or stop subscriptions at any time on 
your Subscriber Preferences Page. You will need to use your email address to log in. If you have questions or 
problems with the subscription service, please visit subscriberhelp.govdelivery.com. 

This service is provided to you at no charge by E‐Verify. 
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